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augural lecture entitled "The Place of Archreology in 
Indian Studies". The High Commissioner for India, 
Mr. Krishna Menon, who took the chair, said that 
the creation of such a chair was very welcome and 
he hoped that it would lead to exchanges of scholars 
on both sides. He welcomed the appointment of 
Prof. Codrington, whose second home was India. In 
his lecture, Prof. Codrington stressed the educational 
value of the study of archreology, and the need of 
close collaboration between all who are interested in 
the study of India. Outlining the relations of the 
earliest city culture in India with north and south 
Persia, he went on to describe the intrusion of the 
neolithic tanged-adze culture of South-East Asia with 
reference to the first appearance of the Aryans 
in India. The chair of Indian archreology in the 
University of London is held jointly at the Institute 
of Archreology and the School of Oriental Studies. 

Food and Agriculture Organisation 
THE fourth annual conference of the Food and 

Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations will 
open in Washington on November 15. The conference 
will review the world food situation and the technical 
activities of the Food and Agriculture Organisation. 
It will also consider major constitutional, adminis­
trative and financial issues, particularly the budget 
for the next financial year. The United Kingdom 
delegation will be led by Mr. Tom Williams, Minister 
of Agriculture and Fisheries ; the alternate leader 
is Mr. R. H. Franklin, deputy secretary in the 
Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries. Among other 
members of the delegation will be Sir Ralph Enfield 
(chief economic adviser) and Mr. A. T. A. Dobson 
(fisheries adviser), both of the Ministry of Agriculture 
and Fisheries; Dr. N. C. Wright (chief scientific 
adviser), of the Ministry of Food; Sir Gerard 
Clauson, assistant under-secretary of State in the 
Colonial Office; Mr. P . N. R. Butcher, assistant 
secretary in the Ministry of Health; Mr. A. N. 
Duckham, agricultural attache to the British Em­
bassy; and Mr. G. R. Oake, head of the British 
Supply Office (Food) in Washington. In addition, 
Mr. James Turner, president of the National Farmers 
Union, and Mr. E. G. Gooch, president of the 
National Union of Agricultural Workers, will serve 
as advisers to the delegation. 

Biological Service in Great Britain 
MR. HERBERT MoRRISON, Lord President of the 

Council, announced in the House of Commons on 
November 1 that Capt. Cyril Diver has been ap­
pointed head of the biological service which is to be 
formed for the conservation of the fauna and flora of 
Great Britain, including Nature reserves. The 
London office of the service is at Thorney House, 
Smith Square, S.W.l. 

Society of Chemical Industry : Fine Chemicals 
Group 
THE Fine Chemicals Group of the Society of 

Chemical Industry has for its objects "The discussion 
of fine chemicals especially such as are of therapeutic 
or biological interest". The Group held its inaugural 
meeting at the Royal Institution on October 5, 
with Sir Jack Drummond, chairman of the Group, 
presiding. Prof. J. H. Burn, professor of pharmaco­
logy, University of Oxford, delivered the inaugural 
address and reviewed much of the important work 
that has been done in the production of fine chemicals 
for medicinal use. He recalled the lapse of time 

between the discovery of penicillin in 1929 and its 
use in 1941, and suggested that, but for the recog­
nition of the curative value of sulphonamides, it is 
possible that the use of penicillin might have been 
held up indefinitely owing to the false notion that 
"an antibacterial agent for use in man is an impossi­
bility". Prof. Burn referred particularly to the work 
in the fields of tuberculosis and cancerous growths, 
of which the latter is still, in his opinion, the out­
standing unsolved problem ; it is one thing to deal 
with bacteria in the blood and extracellular fluid, but 
quite another thing when the bacterial agents are 
inside the cell or even in the nucleus. Much knowledge 
is to be gained from the classical work of Dale and 
Laidlaw with Carr, Barger and Ewins on adrenaline 
(and sympathomimetic amines), histamine and 
acetylcholine. It is increasingly obvious that the 
effect of chemical substances in the body is to 
modify or interfere with the action of these three 
compounds. This matter is of great importance in 
the study of anresthetics, and it would be worth while 
to promote research in this direction. In the general 
problems of research, Prof. Burn felt that the univer­
sity worker ought to pass on more of his knowledge 
to the industrial laboratories, and the industrial men 
of science must take 'refresher' courses in the academic 
laboratories to keep abreast of new techniques. The 
crying need of to-day is not for more fundamental 
knowledge but more application of the present 
existing knowledge. In conjunction with this, Prof. 
Burn expressed the opinion that the value of elabor­
ating quantitative methods for the estimation of 
biological properties is indisputable. This work has 
been criticized as not leading to any fundamental 
discovery; but since 1926 chemical work has been 
much facilitated by the introduction of biological 
standards, and the Pharmaceutical Society has made 
a wise decision in establishing a laboratory for the 
study of biological standardization. 

Cultural Geography of the Tarascan Area, Mexico 
PuB. No.7 of the Institute of Social Anthropology, 

Smithsonian Institution, Washington, by Robert C. 
West, may be specially welcomed because it deals 
with a population in its environment in western 
Mexico, and takes note of physical features, climate, 
agriculture, handicrafts, houses and settlements and 
material culture generally. The geognostic map is an 
interesting key to the environment and so are the 
maps, admittedly based on inadequate data none too 
reliable, of climatic features, especially the frequency 
of frost on the highlands. Tarascan was an indigenous 
language of pre-Spanish days ; the conquerors mis­
used the natives in mines and elsewhere, missionaries 
and others 'hispanized' large numbers of the remainder 
on great estancias (stock-raising farms) and haciendas 
(crop farms); so the old language lingers only in the 
poorer areas which Europeans did not wish to occupy. 
The recession of Tarascan speech is traced in maps 
for different periods. Wheat and barley were cultiv­
ated soon after the Spanish Conquest in order to pay 
the tribute demanded by the authorities, and Arabic 
modes of irrigation also carne in. Each community 
had owned surrounding lands in which the chief 
apportioned the right of user among the villagers. 
Since the mid-nineteenth century, individual owner­
ship has developed ; but vestiges remain, and in some 
pueblos a head-of-family may have 2-4 hectares 
allotted sine die provided he does not leave the 
land untilled for more than two successive years. 
He may sell his right-of-user, but only to another 
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member of the pueblo. The woodland is, at least in 
theory, communal property. The gradations from 
indigenous to more or less European tradition give 
pages of special interest to this book. 

High-Vacuum Equipment 
PARTICULARS have recently been received from 

Messrs. W. Edwards and Co. (London), Ltd., Kangley 
Bridge Road, London, S.E.26, of several new devices 
which they manufacture for use with pumps and 
vacuum equipment. These include controllable leaks 
for the continuous admission of small quantities of 
gas to a vacuum system. A dial allows any particular 
setting of the valve to be noted and repeated. The 
other equipment consists of various combinations 
of bellows and micro-switches to form pressure­
controlled relays capable of operating a half-horse­
power A.c. motor. One version can be used to switch 
off power supplies, or start a motor, when the 
pressure in a vacuum system reaches any pre­
determined value between 15 and 500 mm. of 
mercury. Another application is as a safety device 
which comes into play when the rate of flow of liquid 
in a tube falls outside chosen limits. This instru­
ment is also supplied in a form which indicates the 
rate of flow on a dial. No doubt many applications 
of these units will be found in apparatus which has 
to run for long periods without attention. 

Colonial Services: Recent Appointments 
THE following appointments in the Culonial 

Services have been announced: J. S. Campbell, 
agricultural officer, Nigeria; H. D. Matheson, 
agricultural officer, Federation of Malaya; D. J. 
Parsons, agricultural officer, Uganda; J. B. D. 
Robinson, chemist, Department of Science and 
Agriculture, Barbados; J. W. F. Chapman, assistant 
conservator of forests, Nigeria; D. A. Francis, 
assistant conservator of forests, Gold Coast; F. W. 
Binge, geologist, Kenya; T. C. James, geologist, 
Tanganyika ; D. L. Searle, geologist, Kenya ; R. B. 
Smith, agricultural officer, Trinidad ; M. E. R. 
Taylor, assistant conservator of forests, British 
Guiana; J. H. Wheelan, assistant conservator of 
forests, Gold Coast ; H. Gillman (agricultural officer, 
Tanganyika), senior agricultural officer, Tanganyika; 
R. Johns (agricultural adviser to the comptroller of 
development and welfare, West Indies), deputy 
director of agriculture (regional), Nigeria; R. W. R. 
Miller (agricultural officer, Federation of Malaya), 
director of agriculture, Sarawak ; A. Smith (rural 
education officer, Gold Coast), principal agricultural 
education officer, Gold Coast; F. E. Hughes (senior 
assistant conservator of forests, Gold Coast), con­
servator of forests, Gold Coast. 

University of London 
THE title of professor emeritus in the University 

of London has been conferred on the following : Sir 
Alexander Fleming, professor of bacteriology in St. 
Mary's Hospital Medical School since 1928; Sir 
Francis Fraser, professor of medicine and physician 
in St. Bartholomew's Hospital Medical College during 
1920-34 and professor of medicine in the British 
Postgraduate Medical School during 1934-46; Prof. 
H. Gordon Jackson, professor of zoology in Birkbeck 
College since 1928, and master of the College; and 
Prof. C. H. Lobban, formerly head of the Department 
of Civil and Mechanical Engineering and professor of 
civil engineering in King's College during 1935-46. 

The following have been conferred : 
D.Sc. on Elsie M. Widdowson (Imperial College); 
D.Sc.(Eng.) on Hugh Ford (Imperial College), 
H. C. H. Gurney and Harry Walker (external 
students). 

Royal Society of Edinburgh: Officers for 
AT a statutory meeting of the Royal Society of 

Edinburgh, held on October 25, the following officers 
and members of council were elected : President : 
Sir William Wright Smith; Vice-Presidents: Prof. 
W. M. H. Greaves, Prof. James P. Kendall, Sir 
Ernest Wedderburn, Prof. A. C. Aitken, Prof. E. P. 
Cathcart, Sir Alexander Gray ; General Secretary : 
Dr. J. E. Richey; Secretaries to Ordinary Meetings: 
Prof. E. T. Copson, Prof. Arthur Holmes; Treasurer: 
Mr. Andrew White Young; Curator of Library and 
Museum: Dr. John E. Mackenzie; Ordinary Mem­
bers of Council: Prof. A. D. Hobson, Prof. W. 0. 
Kermack, Dr. John Weir, Prof. J. H. Gaddum, Prof. 
G. D. Preston, Prof. S. J. Watson, Mr. R. Ll. Gwilt, 
Prof. J. N. Davidson, Mr. Edmund G. Dymond, 
Mr. Charles W. Parsons, Prof. R. W. Wheldon, Prof. 
E. M. Wright. 

Institute for the Study of Animal Behaviour 
AT the arumal general meeting of the Institute for 

the Study of Animal Behaviour, held on October 10 
in the rooms of the Linnean Society, Dr. W. H. 
Thorpe, of the Department of Zoology, Cambridge, 
was elected president in succession to Prof. Edward 
Hindle. Dr. Thorpe, who is a leading British worker 
in the field of animal behaviour, is a member of the 
editorial board of Behaviour, the new international 
journal devoted to this subject. Dr. P. H. T. Hartley, 
of the Edward Grey Institute, Oxford, was elected 
joint honorary secretary with Prof. Alastair N. 
Worden, while Mr. James Fisher, a former honorary 
secretary, was elected honorary treasurer. The 
following were elected to serve as members of Council : 
Mr. R. J. Bartlett (London), Dr. J. T. Edwards 
(London), Dr. John Hammond (Cambridge), Prof. 
A. C. Hardy (Oxford), Prof. Edward Hindle (Lon­
don), Prof. Julian Huxley (Unesco), Dr. E. S. Russell 
(Hastings), Dr. Arthur Walton (Cambridge) and Dr. 
C. W. M. Whitty (Oxford). 

Announcements 
A DISCUSSION on "The Theory and Practice of 

New Techniques in Separation and Purification", to 
be held by the Chemical Society on November 25, 
has been arranged by Dr. R. P. Linstead. There 
will be two sessions : "Chromatography and Partition 
Chromatography", at 2.30 ; "Ion Exchange", at 7. 

A COMPLIMENTARY dinner was given on October 22 
to Prof. John Read by the members of the Chemical 
Society of the University of St. Andrews to mark the 
celebration of his silver jubilee as professor of chem­
istry in the University, to which he came in 1923 
from the chair of organic chemistry at the University 
of Sydney. Mr. A. R. Battersby, president of the 
Society, presided over a representative gathering, 
which included Sir James Irvine, principal of the 
University and a former occupant of the chair of 
chemistry. 

ERRATUM.-In Nature of October 30, p. 690, under 
"The Night Sky in November", line 8, for "easterly" 
read "westerly". 
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